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TRANSCRIPT LEGEND

The following transcript contains quoted material.
Such material is reproduced as read or spoken.

In the following transcript: a dash (--) indicates
an unintentional or purposeful interruptién of a
sentence. An ellipsis (. . .) indicates halting speech
or an unfinished sentence in dialogue or omission(s) of
word(s} when reading written material.

-- {sic) denotes an incorrect usage or pronunciation
of a word which is transcribed in its original form as
reported.

-- (phonetically) indicates a phonetic spelling of
the word if no confirmation of the correct spelling is
available.

-- ®uyh-huh" represents an affirmative response, and
"uh-uh®™ represents a negative response.

-- "*" denotes a spelling based on phonetics,

.~ without reference available.

-- (inaudible}/ (unintelligible) signifies speaker
failure, usually failure to use a microphone.

In the following transcript “off microphone”
refers to microphone malfunction or speaker's neglect

to depress "on" button.




PARTICTIUPANTS

(By Group, in Alphabetical COrder)

BOARD MEMBERS

CHAIR

ZIEMER, Paul L., Ph.D.
Professor Emeritus

School of Health Sciences
Purdue University
Lafayette, Indiana

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

WADE, Lewis, Ph.D.

Senior Science Advisor

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health
Centers for Disease Contrel and Prevention
Washington, DC

MEMBERSHIP

ANDERSON, Henry A., M.D.

Chief Medical Officer

Occupational and Environmental Health
Wisconsin Division of Public Health _
‘Madison, Wisconsin

ESPINOSA, Richard Lee

Sheet Metal Workers Union Local #49
Johnson Controls

Los Alamos National Laboratory
Espanola, New Mexico

GIBSON, Michael H.

President

Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical, and Energy Union
Local 5-4200

Miamisburg, Ohio




GRIFFCN, Mark A.

President

Creative Pollution Soclutions, Inc.
Salem, New Hampshire

MELIUS, James Malcom, M.D., Ph.D.

Director

New York State Laborers' Health and Safety Trust Fund
Albany, New York

MUNN, Wanda I.
Senior Nuclear Engineer (Retired)
Richland, Washington

OWENS, Charles Leon

President

Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical, and Energy Union
Local 5-550

Paducah, Kentucky

PRESLEY, Robert W.

Special Projects Engineer

BWXT Y12 National Security Complex
Clinton, Tennessee

ROESSLER, Genevieve S., Ph.D.
Professor Emeritus
University of Florida
Elysian, Minnesota

STAFF/VENDORS

LASHAWN SHIELDS, Committee Management Specialist, NIOSH
STEVEN RAY GREEN, Certified Merit Court Reporter




PARTICIPANTS

BEHLING, HANS, SC&A
FITZGERALD, JOSEPH, SC&A
HINNEFELD, STUART, NIOSH
HOMOKI-TITUS, LIZ, HHS
HOWELL, EMILY, HHS
LIPSZTEIN, JOYCE, SC&A
MAKHIJANI, ARJUN, SC&A
MAURO, JOHN, SC&A .
NETON, JIM, NIOSH
NUGENT, MARY, GAO
SAMSON, BOB, GAO

STAUDT, DAVID, CDC
TOOHEY, RICHARD, ORAU




[RY)

tad

16

PROCEEDTINGS

(IN EXECUTIVE SESSION)
(L:07 p.m.)

DR. ZIEMER: Just for the record, the full
Board is here with the exception of Roy DeHart,
who's on travel in Eurcpe or other parts of the
world, and Henry Anderson, who's here at the
meeting but is not with us for the first part
of this session. The rest of the Board members
are here, together with our court reporter and
with Dr. Wade, our Designated Federal Official.
And then in addition, we have a number of
individuals from the contractor office, and
perhaps what we should do for the record and
for the court reporter is ask everyone here to

identify by name and affiliation who they are.

John, you can start -- John Mauro will begin .. ...

17
18
19

right here, and David, you can --

DR. MAURO: John --

DR. ZIEMER: -- hopefully hear these.

DR. MAURO: John Mauro, Sanford Cohen &
Associates.

DR. WADE: I think that microphone comes out,
John, and you can just pass it around.

DR. BEHLING: Hans Behling, S. Cohen &
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Associates.

DR. MAKHIJANI: Arjun Makhijani, SC&A.

DR. LIPSZTEIN: Joyce Lipsztein. I'm working
for SC&A.

MR. FITZGERALD: Joe Fitzgerald, SC&A team.
MR. SAMSON: Bob Samson, GAO, Washington
office.

MS. NUGENT: Mary Nugent, GAO, Chicago office.
MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: Liz Homoki-Titus with Health
and Human Services.

MS8. HOWEBLL: Emily Howell, Health and Human
Services.

MR. HINNEFELD: Stu Hinnefeld, NIOSH/OCAS.

DR. ZIEMER: Okay, thank you. I mentioned all
the Bbard members. Actually just joining us
here is Mike Gibson. I overlooked Mike, but

he's with us now. So we can proceed, I --

“DR. WADEY Maybeé T should make a brief comment.

Again, this is the closed portion of the
meeting. It'll proceed from 1:00 p.m. to 3:00
p-m. The closed portion of the meeting will
involve a review with discussion of the
finalization of contractor -- read SC&A -- cost
and scope of work issues for the next fiscal

year. That's all we'll talk about in the




[ ]

S I - RV I - P2

> ]

closed session.

As can happen in these sessions, we might want
to get into some issues that are related. T
think -- I'l]l stop you or counsel will stop us
and remind us if we're going too far. We can
reserve those issues for open discussion
certainly.

I would think when we come back into open
session we would report out on any
aécomplishments that we've realized during
this, and I hope there will be many to report.
I would also say to the record as we begin this
that I am the technical project officer for the
SC&A contract. David Staudt is the contracting
officer. He's the one who the money flows
through. He's the one who actually makes the

decisions.

From my rolé as technical project officer, I've

been very pleased with the performance and
responsiveness of your contractor. I can only
say positive things about their efforts and
would want to be on the record speaking to
that.

I've sent you many things in the last weeks,

but the thing that I'm going to sort of put you




- W [V}

¥ [}

- -,

10

in mind of is this package. It begins with an
e-mail that I -- that involves my communication
to you, and it has a table at the bottom of it
that relates to some funding scenarios that
we'll be talking about. So if you have that in
front of you -- if you don't have that, I can
certainly get copies of that. Copies?

DR. ZIEMER: Okay, this is an e-mail dated
August 19th, and basically the_table that was
being referred to lists the six proposed task
orders -- there's four existing ones, a new one
called Special Exposure Cohort and a sixth one
and a new one called Program Management. The
table gives the proposed funding for the next
fiscal year on each of the six tasks, together
with the total funding.

And then, Lew, if I may just add to that, Board
members should 4150 then have the individual
proposals, all of which are -- have a cover

letter from SC&A signed by John Mauro. These

are letters directed to David Staudt, and the
Board is copied on them, and then following

each letter is the proposed work for the

upcoming year for the existing tasks -- gives

the hours and the rates and those kinds of
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things and -- for example -- well, we'll get
into them each. But there's one -- one for
each of the existing orders and then for task
six there is one, and I believe for task five
there is a separate -- since this is a new
task, a separate document called Technical
Support for the Advisory Board, et cetera. And
then it says task order proposal response
regquest for proposal SpecialrExposure Cohort
petition review task order and has some
additional words. And then volume one of that
is the technical proposal and volume two is the
cost proposal. So you should have all of those
documents. I think that's all aﬁd we can
proceed.

DR. WADE: Right.

DR. ZIEMER: And Lew, I guess I'll ask you if

you =< cail you lead us through this or should

David lead us through this or what -- how shall
we proceed?

DR. WADE: I mean I'll try and lead us through
this. But let me open with some comments about
funding, and I apologize for the murkiness of
my comments, but those of you who've been in

this country for any length of time understand
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how the budgeting process works with Congress,
and I don’t know when we'll have a budget for
next fiscal year. It is critical, in my view,
that we keep our contractor -- your contractor
-- working, in spite of being under a
continuing resolution or anything like that.
So I would like to have work understood and in
hand as we move into next fiscal year, and
we'll -- we'll deal with those vagaries.

I am aware of action on the Hill to set aside
$3.5 million for SC&A's efforts next vear. I
don't know that that action will come to
fruition. There's no way for me to know that.
But I think it provides at least a number for
us to have in our consideration
(unintelligible) any other numbers that you

might come up with.

- Iwould tell you that if Congress does not take

that action, then it would be the intent of
NIOSH to proceed to provide funding at about
that level to the contractor. But again,
without Congressional action, we would need to
be involved in discussions with DOL, and we
will certainly have those discussions.

It always -- it's always possible that Congress
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9

number. I worry about a smaller number and how

that might inform this discussion. I don't

LFY )

4 think that's a likelihood, but we have to

5 prepare for that. Congress has also a history
6 of allocating monies, appropriating monies, and
7 then doing across-the-board rescissions, and we
] need to understand that that's a possibility.

9 So we need to be flexible as we go through the
10 year. I just don't want to be in a position

11 : where we are not able to keep your contractor
12 | working on October 1st. There are too many

13 | issues hanging of importance here for us.

14 So those are numbers that you can consider. T
15 had those numbers in mind as we tasked -- David
16 and I tasked the contractor.

17 David, is there anything you would like to say
-~ - --—-- aboutactions following this meeting and what
19 needs to happen for you to have a contract in
20 place for next fiscal year?

21 MR. STAUDT: (Via telephone) I just want to say
2 that the task one, three and four we will

23 ; probably act on in October and issue funding in
23 October. The one that will probably need to be

25 funded soon will be the ones for the SC&A (sic)




s [ E¥)

'

L - TR TR R - S ¥

14

and the program management. I'm certainly
ready to move on those very quickly, get those
in place before the end of the CDC fiscal year,
which is next Wednesday. So I was hoping for
at the end some overall guidance and I want to
be able to walk away with knowing that if I can
go ahead and take care of the tasks, the new
tasks, this week and early next week, and then
I can just worry about tasks one, three and
four that are already in existence and fund
those the first thing October 1st.

DR. WADE: Okay. Just for the record, Dbavid,
yvyou did what I did often. You misspoke. You
talked about an SC&A task; I think you meant an
SEC task. The new tasks that we're looking at
are an SEC task and a program management task.

MR. STAUDT: Exactly.

-~~~ DR.TZIEMER: “David or Lew, alsoc, just as a
reference point, could you bring the Board up
to date on where we are on expenditures with
existing tasks. We had originally a set-aside
of around $3 million for what was originally a
five-year plan. But in any event -- and we
recognize how things have changed in the

meantime, but it might be of interest to the
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1 Board to know where we are on the expenditure

(]

of the original $3 million relative to the

tasks completed so far.

L

4 DR. WADE: David, could you do that? You have

5 the numbers in front of vou.

6 MR. STAUDT: Well, yeah, I could -- you know,

7 just based off the most recent SC&A invoice

3 that came in this week, the cumulative that has

9 é been -- that is being billed is $2.3§@ million

10 f out of what we have authorized them.

11 | DR. ZIEMER: Thank --

12 MR. STAUDT: And so --

I3 DR. ZIEMER: -- David, we --

13 MR. STAUDT: -- from a -- how much money vou

15 ) have over all related to total funding, we've

16 authorized those -- authorized them $2.975

17 : million, but collectively they've -- they've
e — - - &~ - o billed "$2.394 wmillion. T 7

19 DR. WADE: Could you break that out by task,

20 David?

21 MR. STAUDT: Yes, I can. Task one to the

» deollar is $1,284,035. Task two they've billed

23 $28,551. Task order three, $195,369. And

RE} finally task order four, $886,163. And that is

25 on about -- your invoice 19, which is dated
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| August 15, 2005.
2 DR. WADB: And just for the record, task one
3 is?
4 MR. STAUDT: Task order one is the site profile
5 reviews.
6 DR. WADE: Task order two?
7 MR. STAUDT: Case tracking. Task order three
8 is dose reconstruction, and task order four is
9 entitled individual dose recpqstruction
10 f reviews.
11 DR. Z2IEMBR: I think task three was actually
12 the procedures review.
13 MR. STAUDT: I think that was just a -- that
14 was like a kind of a title that was in there,
15 SO you are correct.
16 DR. ZIEMER: Yes, it is the procedures review
17 task. Thank you. That's -- that's helpful I
e W~ —— =~ think jUSt ds A& reféreénce point for the Board T
19 so they have at least an intuitive feel of what
20 resources it's taken. We -- we know what
21 products have been developed through this
22 money, so that's helpful.
23 DR. WADE: And just on the record again, nine
24 site profile reviews complete or close to
25 complete, 62 individual dose reconstructions.




PO Y N I ]

(¥ ]

o -

16
17

— e — }_8_ [

19

17

Okay, the next thing that I would propose,
Paul, is possibly to ask John Mauroc to just
very briefly walk us through each of the
proposals.

DR. MAURO: Perhaps the best way to do this is
if you all have the proposals, we could start
with task one, and the best way to do that is
to go to Exhibit 1 in -- for the proposal for
task order cone. It's on the third page. I
think that's the best way to identify the scope
and the budget and get an idea what this is all
about .

So if you have Exhibit 1 for task order one in
front of you, you'll notice that what we've
done here is we've been asked throughout the
TORP, task order request for proposal, to

prepare a proposal to do six site profiles for

- next fiscal year. 'And the scope of work, the
way you should look at it is the -- of course
the first column gives the names of the
individuals that will be working on those sgix
site profile reviews. The second column gives
the work hour allocation that we designated for
doing the six site profile reviews.

You'll notice if you locok at the bottom line
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number, what we're saying is it's going to cost

6,200 work hours -- we won't talk dollars right
now. That's -- I think it's -- to get a feel
for -- to do the six site profiles. That

number comes from actuals. Our actual
experience has been, to prepare the oneg we've

prepared to date, it costs anywhere between

"1,000 and 1,500 work hours of this mix of

people to complete the product that gets out
into your hands before the expanded review
cycle.

In other words, so you get this big book, and
then the expanded review cycle begins. Okay?
So in effect, what we're saying is well, we'll
-~ we're probably going to be in that game
pace, s0 I allocated 6,200 work hours, a little

over 1,000 work hours per site profile, to do

The next column over you'll -- is a new column.
Here's where the scope of work has expanded,
and this is as a result of the conversation
that we had one of our previous meetings.

We're assuming that we're -- part of the --
part and parcel of a site profile review has

always been review of the Technical Information
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Bulletins. So when I say we're going to review
a site profile, that automatically has always
meant not only the site profile, the TBDs, the
chapters that make up the site profile, but
also the TIBs, any Technical Information
Bulletins that are -- that is -- so that's
within the scope of that first column, and
that's what it -- that's part of the cost that
we've incurred. So when I say about 1,000 to
1,500 work hours per site profile, that means
the review of not only the -- the various TBDs
or chapters, but also the Technical Information
Bulletins that support it, and of course all
the literature that's cited. I mean that's
part of the process.

But something new has arisen on the horizon is

that there are now a number of site-specific

these workbooks are becoming increasingly
important because they're allowing NIOSH to do
realistic dose reconstructions as opposed to
these min/max. So more and more of these
workbooks are finding their way into the
process. And in fact we have a listing as an

attachment -- the next page -- Exhibit 2 of
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what we believe the -- they -- are the current
workbooks, spreadsheets, that are being used.
So our review of each site profile now will
include a review of the applicable workbooks.
And I've broken that out separately, as a
separate item, since it's a new item. And
basically to review those list, which is about
20 of these right -- 19, I estimated about
2,000 work hours, or about 100 work hours per
-workbook.

DR. ZIEMER: John, I want to ask you a question
on that, and maybe ask David, also, this
question. The review of the workbooks, in a
sense, is a kind of procedures review. And is
it easier or does it make more sense to keep it
here as part of the site profile review as

opposed to separating it out and including it

in &8sk thTée as procedures review?

DR. MAURO: Yeah, I think it's important --
DR. ZIEMER: It gets probably commingled with
the site in a way that's probably harder to
track separately. Right?

DR. MAURO: Yeah, it's critical that we link
the -- see, in -- in effect the TIBs, the site

profile and the workbooks, they're all the same
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| thing.

2 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah.

3 DR. MAURO: The reality is, the workboock really
4 is the tool that's going to implement -- and

3 it's not generic. The workbooks that I listed
6 here are specific to a site, so you really

7 don't want to put the site-specific workboocks

8 into task three. You want to keep it right

9 | here. That's where it makes sense.

10 DR. ZIEMER: I just want to make sure that

11 ‘ everybody's okay on that, and I think for the
12 contracting officer -- although this is a

13 procedure review, it is so integrally tied in
14 with the site that it would be most difficult
15 to track it as a -- even track the time

16 separately, it would seem to me.

17 DR. MAURO: To a large extent, even the TBDs
A8-—— v - - ——greaprocedurE T T T T T T s s e e s
19 DR. WADE: And I raised the question with David
20 when it first came up, and David did not see

21 this as an expansion of the scope of this task.
2 So I think we're within the scope of the task.
23 DR. MAURO: I could understand that -- bear in
24 mind, however, that the -- when we began there
25 were no workbooks. They be--
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4 part of the process as we matured into the

5 process, and they're becoming more and more

6 important, especially when we move into

7 realistic cases.

8 The third column of numbers is called the

9 expanded review cycle. This is the -- the area

10 where it's very -- there's a great deal of

11 uncertainty. What we basically said was where

12 we have for next fiscal year six site profiles

13 we'll do, but we really right now have in the

14 wings five that we've already done that we

13 haven't acted on, like Savannah River, Hanford.

16 My expectation is -- and this what I assumed --

17 that there will be five left-overs that are
= ——— -~ going~to be coming over into next fisdal year.

19 And what I said is well, let's set aside 150

20 work hours per expanded review. 8So we have 11

21 -- six for the new ones, five carryovers from

22 last year -- total of 11, 150 work hours per

23 expanded review, and that's the basis for the

24 1,650 work hours. So put -- we are in effect

25 putting that aside.

DR. ZIEMER: Right

document.

F

22

it's a new kind of

DR. MAURO: Right, and they merged and became
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Now that being said, the actual cost to do the
expanded review and closecut cycle is
unfortunately pretty open-ended, as we've
experienced with Mallinckrodt. Mallinckrodt --
I'm not quite sure where we are right now; I
don't have the numbers 'cause we're still in it
-- has been a very cost-- costly process. I
expect that's not going to be the case across
the board. But -- so I've set aside 150 work
hours fofreach expaﬁded review cycle. It may
average out to that, but there's an area where
I'd like to let everyone know that we have some
vulnerability. And as soon as I have -- as we
go through the work and the actuals start
coming in and we start work on Hanford and
Savannah River, as soon as I get an inkling

that wait a minute, I think we've got a

“problem, I"will Tet &Veryone Know right away.
But that really boil-- that's the bottom line

on task one.

DR. WADE: That's fine.

DR. MAURO: Okay?

DR. WADE: Let's move on. We want to try and

finish your comments no later than 2:00, John.

DR. MAUORO: Okay, I -- should I --
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DR. MELIUS: Can I ask a question?

DR. MAURO: Yeah.

DR. MELIUS: I notice in -- under Exhibit 2
that a number of the site-specific workbooks
have to do with site profiles that are already
in review or have been completed.

DR. MAURO: Right.

DR. MELIUS: Are those -- have you already
reviewed these workbooks or --

DR; MAURO: No.

DR. MELIUS: Are -- is there a plan to -- for
example, Hanford calculation workbook, that's
not been reviewed to date?

DR. MAURO: No. The only time I -- a workbook
has found -- has become reviewed is when Hans
has it available when he's doing a case. 1In

other -- in order to -- in other words, in

“order for him to do a case, in order for him to

check a number, and if we find out that there
was in fact a workbook and we could get our
hand on that workbook, then we make use of it.
But workbooks were not reviewed as part of task
one. Okay?

DR. MELIUS: So another vulnerability, so to

speak, would be that in the course of our
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resolution of comments on the Hanford site
profile, for example, we're going to get into
these Hanford workbooks, and you may very well
-- you know, you and your staff spend time
reviewing them, that's not been included in
these calculations -- estimates.

DR. MAURO: The --

DR. MELIUS: The time on the Hanford workbooks,
'‘cause those are thingsrthgt were in last --
MR. GRIFFON: In the last --

DR. MELIUS: -- round.

DR. ZIEMER: The question is, do these site-
specific workbook times simply reflect the six
new reviews, or do they also include the ones
that have to be done from the previous site.
DR. MAURO: Oh, the -- I'll answer the question

in a simpler way. New work for next fiscal

re;iew of these workbooks. That has not been
done vet.

DR. ZIEMER: That's the 2,000 hours that you've
billed.

DR. MAURO: That's -- and we're going to bill -
- we expect to bill 2,000 work hours --

DR. ZIEMER: For everything on the list.

“year"that we've included under task one is the
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DR. MAURO: -- for everything on this list.
Now that list may grow, and then we'll have to
DR. ZIEMER: But it does include some sitesg
where they have --

DR. MAURO: And it certainly includes sites
that we've already -- site profiles that we'lve
already reviewed, but we have not reviewed the
workbooks.

DR. MELIUS: Does that -- I mean --

DR. ZIEMER: So it's not just the six work--
six sites in the --

DR. MELIUS: Yeah, that's what I was trying to
get -- try to understand.

DR. MAURO: TIt's very simple. Here they are.

We're going to review those. And it's going to

cost -- we estimate 2,000 work hours to write

Yeports Teviewing those workbooks.
PR. MELIUS: This is a small comment, but for
example, Iowa is listed there. TIs there --
like is there really a need to do Iowa, given
our decisions on Iowa?

DR. WADE: I would think, unless it has impact
upon other sites, the answer would be no.

DR. MELIUS: Right.
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1 5 DR. WADE: ¥ think we -- we have to leave that

[ B ]

decision to a more detailed evaluation on your

part, but I would see no reason toc review Iowa,

W

4 if Iowa has been dealt with and there is no

5 reason -- there is no impact upon another site.
6 DR. MAURO: That's your -- if that's vyour

7 i instruction, that's fine.

8 DR. WADE: I'm not giving it as instruction,

9 I'm just presenting it as a logic line.

10 DR. MELIUS: I-would also suggest -- and I

Hl don't think it's resolvable here -- but that we
12 also try to develop a list of what's going to
13 be forthcoming from NIOSH and ORAU in terms of
14 workbooks that -- so that we sort of -- at

I3 least terms of scheduling, but also the amount
16 of effort that's going to be involved, we -- we
17 come up with a better estimate. I don't think
18— - — -——it-should affect—what we do here; BUt I tHidK ~ =~ ]
i in terms of looking at our forward work that I
20 think we need to try to loock ahead a little

21 bit.

2 DR. MAURO: I guess -- Hans just reminded me of
233 something that might be relevant here. Let's
24 talk Iowa that's got its SEC. My expectation,

23 though, is there are a number of cancers that
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are not covered by SEC, so there might be dose
reconstructions, there might be procedures,

there might be workbooks that are going to be

3 put into play for dose reconstructing cases
5 which fall outside of the cancers that are
6 include -- so I mean that that would be a
7 rationale why it might be a good idea to leave
8 it in. ©Not that it should be, but --
9 DR. WADE: I think we should let common sense
10 7guide us through this as we go.
Il DR. MELIUS: Yeah.
12 DR. ZIEMER: Okay, proceed.
13 MR. GRIFFON: TI want just to follow up on Jim's
14 comment that there's a -- and I think you guys
15 probably reviewed this as part of putting this
i6 package together, but there is a -- on the 0O
17 drive there's -- I think it's on ORAU's

e — — B—-—-— - ~controlled documeént whatéver that a fairly --
19 they keep it fairly up-to-date as far as
20 current procedures and it -- and it even has
21 the status, whether they’re under review -- you
22 know, s0 it sort of gives us an indication of
23 what's coming up.
24 DR. MAURO: Yeah,
23 MR. GRIFFON: 2nd I'm -- I hope you
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1 : (unintelligible) --

2 DR. MAURO: That's -- that's how we got this --

3 yeah, in fact, that might be -- that's a good

4 suggestion, by the ways. In our progress

5 reports for each one of these we will keep you

6 apprised of -~- has anything new cropped up on

7 the O drive, new -- that -- that are not within

8 the scope of this.

9 Now that doesn't mean it's a problem. I mean

10 if we can -- if -- within the budget that we

I B have, if we can take care of them, we'll take

12 | care of them. But we'll keep you apprised of

13 new -- new -- see, for the purpose of pricing

14 this I just went with what we know.

15 DR. WADE: Right, that's fine. Perfectly

16 : reasonable.

17 Jim Neton has joined us, David, as well -- for
—— —*"Ch'e__"'e'"ﬁﬁfd'_f TTTT Tt T T T T T T T e T e e

19 MR. STAUDT: Thank you.

20 DR. WADE: Okay.

21 DR. ZIEMER: You can proceed, John.

22 DR. WADE: With task three -- or task two, T

23 guess.

24 DR. MAURO: Next is task three. There is no

25 longer a task two.
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DR. WADE: Okay.

DR. MAURO: In fact, we -- maybe we -- for a
moment -- should -- I know you want to go
quickly, so we won't talk about task two.
Let's move on to task three.

Again, task three -- as you --

DR. ZIEMER: Excuse me.

DR. MAURO: Yes.

DR. ZIEMER: What about case tracking, though,
in the future? What -- whf -- is that -- is
that covered under the management task?

DR. MAURO: No -- let's talk about it then.
DR. ZIEMER: Okay.

PR. MAURO: Originally task two set aside
$30,000 for SC&A to prepare a database
management system for tracking cases. Okay?

aAnd we did one, and we delivered it. You have

-t -—-It-was based on our vision of what—we -

thought a good case tracking system would be.
Okay? And it exists. And it contains a
tremendous amount of capability to do just
about anything you would want to do by way of
sorting -- it's an access database, and we
could populate the -- popul--

DR. ZIEMER: It's not the actual tracking, it's
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1 | the system, yeah.
2 DR. MAURO: No, but the -- what we ended up
3 really doing under -- and billing it under task
4 four is Kathy Behling worked very closely with
5 Mark and prepared the checklist and the matrix
6 tracking system that was used very effectively
7 fecently in getting through the first set of 20
g cases. So in a funny sort of way, I think that
9 that tracking syspem, and any other tracking
10 s?stem tﬁat is developed, whether it's in
11 support of task three, whether it -- or task
12 one to track issues is going to emerge as part
13 7 and parcel of that task, as opposed to task
i4 two, which was I think well-intentioned. The
| S tool is there. The degree to which we will
16 eventually use that toocl is really uncertain
17 right now.
8 ———— DR, BEHLING: The handout that Kathy prepared |
19 for you is a product of that -- I think you
20 have a four-page document that was made
21 ' available, and that's just an example of the
2 database that she's setting up that she can
a3 instantly sort on who -- which facilities,
24 which types of cancers, what percentage, et

25 cetera, et cetera. So what you're seeing in
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that document is an expression of that
particular database that she's developed, and
it really is part of task four now.

DR. MADRO: Okay, let's move on now to task
three, which is procedures. And it's good to
think in terms of generic -- okay? -- in terms
of procedures, as opposed to site-specific.
What I've -- what I've done here is say ckay,
there -- first of all, we're going to have to
go through the closeout process. That is --
right now -- a matrix is being put together.
We talked about it. We have resources right
now that we're using and have available to us
to continue to work on that matrix. We have
the resources necessary to meet with NIOSH and
go through the closeout process in an

unencumbered way, so we have the resources to

‘move right through the month of September right

into October.

But we believe that process is going to
continue, and continue in terms of closing out
the issues that we're going to be discussing
that are reflected in our task three report,
but there also -- so there is an expanded re--

what I call the expanded review. That's what I
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just described.
expectation that in order to
expanded review cycle of the
already delivered to you, we

draw upon the resources that

33

I put in 340 work hours in the
complete the

report that we've

- we will

we currently have

left in the -- in the -- on the project, and --

and I‘ve asked for another 340 work hours to

allow that to continue into next fiscal year.

One of the questions I wasn't quite sure of,

and this is more -- a guestion for David, I

would

-- I believe, is that the

-- right now

there's a certain number of resources remaining

in task order three to continue to work. When

Septem-- the end of September comes, on many of

the other task order contracts I work with --

other Federal agencies -- that date comes,

that's the end of it.

That task order's over.

T If there's monéy left in it,

vine.

That money disappears

the -- you know, the next --

order, the one we're talking

it dies on the
and we start with
the next task

about right now.

Or is that money available to us to carry over

as part of -- in other words, is this
approval -- let's say it is approved -- simply
a -- a mod to our task three, or is this a new
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task order which re-- which -- which shuts
down, terminates the o0ld task ordexr, which is
gone forever and -- along with any resources
that might be remaining in it and we pick up
from here. This is a contractual issue that
I'm not -- my experience in other task order
contracts, when the period of performance ends,
that -- it's over. ©Now I don't know if that's
the case here.

DR. ZIEMER: Maybe David can speak to that.

MR. STAUDT: Yeah, this is going to be a
modification., There should be no concern about
the funding. That money should be able to be
carried over --

DR. MAURO: Excellent.

MR. STAUDT: -- and I don't see any -- any

issues there.

DR -MAURO: Thank you. That -~ and that’s the
preferred way, as far as we see it, of course.
Okay. So again, going back to this exhibit on
the second page in the proposal of work -- so
the first c¢olumn is putting some modest number
of work hours into -- to finish up the closeout
process.

But then we're going to move on to well, there
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are a lot of new procedures. If you could fiip
a little bit, you'll see I have a number of
exhibits. There's Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2,
Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4, and these exhibits
were downloaded off the web site, the OCAS web
site, as a set of generic procedures and
workbooks. Okay? There's procedures and
workbooks that are alive and well right now.

So what we did was we saidrokay, since these
aré generic we will estimate what it'll cost to
continue our review of procedures and -- but
also add in -- 'cause these are all new
procedures that have been added since we
originally did our first set of review, which
included about 35 procedures. Also there is a
set of generic --

In fact, if you want to flip toward -- a few

PR SHOSO

TTTpages 1n you'll sé€e Exhibit 4 where vou see
workbooks. You'll notice that I broke them up
into two categories. There's the complex-wide
workbooks and the site-specific workbooks. I
put the site-specific workbooks here just as a
piece of information. We're not going to
review the site-specific workbooks as part of

task three. That's going to be part of task
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one. But we are going to review the complex-

wide generic workbooks as part of task three.

3 Ckay?
4 And that's -- basically covers the -- the
5 columns in the exhibit on work hours. And the
6 total -- the bottom line is 4,220 work hours to
7 perform that scope of work.
g Let's move on to task four. Task four, as you
9 know, is the review of site -- cases. Again --
10 ndﬁ there's a little bit of a story here, a
H little bit more to the story that I think we
12 should talk about that might be important. But
13 let's start again as we did before, flipping
14 through the write-up -- I'm going to talk a
15 little bit about the write-up -- and go to
16 Exhibit 1, which is on page 7 of 8.
17 We -- we have gone through a process now where
"B - TTTTwWeTre ¢l6sé to finishing up 60 cases, the
19 review of 60 cases. We've completed the
20 delivery of 38. You have the second set of 18.
21 Hans is about halfway through the last set.
22 DR. BEHLING: (Off microphone) More than
23 (unintelligible).
24 DR. MAURO: More than halfway through. We're
23 going to be delivering our final work prod--
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our work product to you in the month of

September. And then of course we have the next

3 set of 60. One -- now we -- the way I broke

4 out the cost was what is it going to cost to do

5 each review. And we looked at ocur actual

6 experience. Originally we said it would cost

7 about 50 work hours, on average, per -- this

8 one goes right back to ocur original proposal --

9 about 50 work hours per case review.

10 Ih reality, we experienced something closer to

11 100 work hours. I think -- we know -- we don't

12 need 100 work hours. We need something in

13 between. So I estimated that it's going to

14 take about 70 work hours to deliver the

15 product.

16 Now remember, the delivering of the product is

17 not -- has a lot of fine structure. Once Hans'
==&~~~ ~team puts together tHE big book, then we have

19 that conference call, and then we get feedback.

20 And then once we -- then we deliver the report

21 really officially. After we have our

22 conference call with the individual teams, as

23 we just designated before. Then the report

24 goes out to the Board, everybody, and NIOSH.

25 Then we go over to -- and -- and then we go
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i | over to the next column in Exhibit 1 is the

9

expanded review cycle. This is the process now

where we meet with NIOSH and the Board in

e

4 working group session and we -- we have our

5 checklist, we have our matrix, we go through

6 the matrix. We try to come to closure on

7 issues. That sometimes is an iterative

8 process, so we've set aside some work hours for
9 the expanded rgview cycle so that we can get as
1o clﬁse as we can to closure, fill in the matrix,
11 5 goes into the database and your -- and as we

12 know right now, for the first set of 20 we're
i3 real close to bringing that one home. That is,
14 I think that NIOSH right now is looking at a

15 few open items that are -- will eventually be
16 closed out. And as I understand it, that makes
17 -- that will be the work product that will be
18—~ """ TSent €& HHS, here's what Wé managed to ]
19 accomplish and here's where -- you know, and so
20 a report. And so that’s the expanded review

21 ‘ cycle to get us to the point where we have

2 completed the matrix -- okay -- the matrix and
23 the checklist that goes with every one of these
24 cases.

25 The -- the last column is -- it's been our
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experience that once we do all that, the
original big, thick book that we sent to you,

we have to fix that because it has to be

4 updated, revised, fixed because of all the
5 interaction that takes place, so we're going to
6 have to put another product out. In fact, on
7 the first set of 20 I believe we went through
8 that three times, so that -- I don't think it's
9 going to be that cumbersome in the future, but
10 we will have to do it once.
1 So basically this is the budget that we've set
12 aside to -- that we've proposed.
13 Now there is a new twist -- ckay? -- to this
14 process. First of all, you know, we will be
15 very much including the workbooks, vyou know, in
16 our audits. So the workbocks are part and
17 parcel now of looking at this.
A& oo o T As  always, we will be working very ¢losely with
19 the site profile people, who have already
20 completed reviews 'cause now we have under our
2] belt -- we have -- are sort of standing on the
22 shoulders now of a lot of site profiles that
23 have been completed, go that's going to help us
2% -- make things a little bit easier, so that'sg

one of the reasons why we don't think we're
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going to need as many work hours as we
originally needed.

But there is another little bit of a twist,
though. We are going to be doing realistic
cases. We haven't seen any yet. Oh, we've
seen a little bit of it, but we really haven't
seen them, and we're a little bit un--
uncertain. So what I did -- that's why I
picked 70 work hours. 1It's really a little
less than -- it's between that original 50 and
the 100 that we experienced. As I say, 70 is
not a bad number.

One other twist that is important to mention,
and -- as you may recall, when the original
scope of work was laid out we had basic and
advanced reviews. The intention of that

distinction was -- was well understood. In

- fact,inm our proposal you'll moticé we'rve

a1
actually laid it ocut. Here's what a basic
review consists of and here‘'s what an advanced
review congists of. Well, in reality what we
actually did, and which you've all experienced
with us, we went through it together, was we
actually went through a process which was not a

basic review, it was more than a basic review,
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but it wasn't quite an advanced review, either.
In fact, there were two things we didn't do,
otherwise it would -- these all would have been
advanced reviews, and that is we did not
interview anybody. We didn't go to any sites.
And we didn't try to go into rec-- other
records that may be buried away somewhere. So
I would say what we did -- the actual cases
that were reviewed_ff we've given it a new
némé, a comprehensive review. It really is
midway between the basic and an advanced. wWe
think it makes more sense for these two aspects
of an advanced review, namely going teo the
sites, interviewing people, going to exotic
sources of data -- thét's more appropriately
part of the site profile reviews.

To tie up the audit of a case to try to track

down obscure information on a -- for these
individual cases I think is -- you know the
product you've received. You know, you -- we

think that's the product that serves your
purposes. These audit reports, the checklist,
the matrix, I think it works.

To burden that process by saying well, we want

you to take it -- when you do the advanced
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reviews, we'd like you to, you know, go into
all of these other remote sources of records,
go track them down, find ocut and turn over
every rock, perhaps make some site visits -- in
our opinion, this is our recommendation to you
-- we believe that aspect of the advanced
review is more appropriately part of a site
profile review, not part of an audit. So
that's what we propose. )

So the idea of an advanced versus basic, we're
saying let's put in -- that into the past and
call this thing a comprehensive review, and it
will be the review that you folks have been
experiencing right along the -- the way.

DR. ZIEMER: There is another aspect of the
advanced, and that is the -- not having in

advance the end product that NIOSH got. It was

--_you 'get the same result as NIOSH. In other
words, you don't know the POC or the doses.

DR. MAURO: Ah, you're bringing up something --
a topic we haven't talked about vet.

DR. ZIEMER: (Off microphone) That's a blind
(unintelligible).

DR. MAURO: We haven't done any -- we haven't

done any blind dose reconstructions yet.
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1 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

19

DR. MAURO: Do you still want some --

DR. ZIEMER: No, you're not talking about the

'

4 blind, though.

5 DR. MAURO: No, I'm not. There were three --

6 | if you recall, there were really three

7 different types of audits, basic, advanced and

8 -~ and a blind. Blind is a very unique thing -

9 - we haven't done one yet -—_where_we don't

10 | _ haﬁe ﬁherdose reconstruction report that -- we

. haven't done one yet.

12 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

13 DR. MAURO: Right, so --

14 MR. GRIFFON: Just a comment on the -- on the

I5 advanced. I mean I guess I've, you know, two

16 concerns with -- with putting it into the site

17 profiles. One is that we're going to review
——— 18— ————"" —sowe cases fo6Y smaller sites, for which there

19 is no site profile, so we might randomly get

20 some of these cases that they weren't -- it

21 wasn't a big enough site to get a --

22 DR. MAURO: Uh-huh.

23 MR. GRIFFON: -- a site profile for, so this

24 would in essence turn into a site profile for

25 that small site. And I -- you know, T think
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there's an argument to be made that that's
important.

The second is that I think some of the stuff we

4 found in the first phase on the CATI interviews

3 was not really looked into very far, and I'm

6 wondering if we're going to lose that aspect of

7 -- and that wouldn't necessarily come up in a

8 site profile review.

9 DR. BEHLING: Yeah, if I were to say anything

iO at this boint that differentiates the basic

11 from an advanced it's that up to this point in

12 time we have not gone into anything beyond the

13 records that are basically supplied to us. T

14 think in this third set there are instances

15 where I've looked at it and I said you know,

16 they made a decision that these records really

17 don't exist, even though there's a discrepancy
e —sss e @ e — - -~ hetween the CATYI statement and what is in the

i9 records. And I think this is one area where I

20 believe we're going to go and take the next

21 step and said we're going to contact the DOE

22 people and say are these really -- is this a

23 case of missing records, or was the person

24 really not monitored, and hopefully resolve

25 that open-ended gquestion.
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MR. GRIFFON: That -- that was mainly what --
yveah, I agree.

DR. MAURO: Okay.

4 DR. MELIUS: Well, I'm confused then because
3 what -- what are you going to do I guess is the
6 guestion.
7 DR. MAURO: We have a contradiction here, and
8 you -- you're right, we have a contradiction.
9 DR. ZIEBMER: What you'wve ended uprwith you've
10 indiﬁaﬁea is probably more than we originally
11 thought the basic review would be --
12 DR. MAURO: Absolutely.
13 DR. ZIEMER: -- but not qguite what an advanced
14 would be.
15 DR. MAURO: 1I'll give you an example. As Hans
16 just pointed out, we -- we read a CATI and we
17 find out that there -- there's certain

e = P e i fermation where -- where there's a need to do
19 a coworker investigation. Okay? Let's say --
20 geez, there's some information here that sounds
21 like it'd be worth finding out wmore. What
22 we've been doing is pointing that out as a
23 finding and leaving it really up to NIOSH to
24 achieve closure on that.
25 Now alternatively, one could argue oh, no, no,
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no, this is an advanced review; that's your
job. We could do that. It will be very time-
consuming and it might be more -- and this is
really --

DR. ZIEMER: This is something the Board can
specify if we want a certain number of these
done with that kind of depth, and then I think
you would have -- your cost proposal would
change a bit then.

DR. ﬁAURO: Yeah;_I ﬁeéﬁ wé_éoﬁld leaﬁe-it-at,
you know, the 70 hours 'cause we don't know --
see, it's an unknown. Let's say -- it may turn
out a phone call. You know, what's a phone
call? It may turn out a site visit. Now we're
getting a little more expensive. Might have to
go to a records center and spend a few days to

go dig through certain things. 1In other words,

- ——eem---— - oW We're gettinginto-what—I-call—-the—mode—of——-

operation we're in when we do a site profile,
which is a -- is 1,000 work hours per site
profile, so it is a big effort.

SO0 we -- we can go either way. But right now
we've got the machinery working. We're moving
these site -- these case audits out nicely.

When we see a hole, such as we see a disparity
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between the dose reconstruction and the CATI,
looks like some follow-up work might be needed
over here or over here, we just point that out
and we leave it up to NIOSH and the Board to

decide what do you want to do about it.

By the way, to -- but one -- I have one more --
and I'll turn it over -- I -- one more -- we
have had -- in fact, it turns out,

coincidentally, I was the one who reviewed the
cases fof Blockson -- we had a case for
Blockson Chemical Company and Huntington, both
of which were AWEs that had site profiles, and
so in order for me to review that case I
effectively performed a review of the site
profile. Now I performed a review of the site
profile to the extent that I felt necessary to

say something intelligent about whether I

thought theéy did a good job or not on their
dose -- on their dose reconstruction. But I
would not say that I performed a site profile
review. I went as far as I thought I should
go, and I made that clear in my -- in ny
report, this is what I did.

DR. ZIEMER: Right.

DR. MAURO: So -- but if I were to take on
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Blockson as if I were doing a site profile
during the process of doing a case review, that
becomes an open-ended -- a large job. It
becomes a site profile, which is 1,000 hours,
not 70, so we've got ourselves -- what's the
best way to deal with it. We have our opinion
on how best to deal with it and that's how I
wrote our proposal.

DR. MELIUS: Yeah, I -- I have some serious
concerns about that. I don't think we want to
ask you to repeat work you've done during a
site profile, and I don't recall us telling you
to look for obscure documents and, you know, go
to -- travel around the world and turn over
every stone and try to find every little piece
of information. But I think we did want a

more comprehensive and a little more effort put

“into that, and -- that, and I am reluctant to

change my mind about our -- what we've asked
you to do un-- until you come back to us and
actually show us that it's not an efficient
way, that you're not learning much. I mean the
point with the CATI interviews, I think it's
more than just discrepancies. There's issues

where things just aren't being -- there's a
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very guick judgment made by NIOSH or CRAI,
whoever's doing the dose reconstruc-- not to
pursue that information. 2and I don't think
that we want you just to sign off on that. I
think there ought to be some follow-up and so
forth. Now -- and I think until we‘we done
some of these, I don't -- I'm reluctant to have
-- have you somehow curtail what we were
originally ggking“you_tq do. I -- we -- T
think it's appropriate to -- for you to
exercise judgment on that. I think what you
did on Blockson was -- was fine. It's
explained how -- you're explaining how far you
went and so forth. But I don't like the idea
of this change in the scope of what we were
asking for.

DR. BEHLING: I'm going to just respond

briefly. T think, as John has already
mentioned, we have been doing pretty much a --
an advanced review all along. We have not
taken things at face value. Now we have
stopped in certain instances where we realized
we would have to contact people that we may or
may not have the authority to contact. And at

this point in time I would say we cannot make a
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prediction that these cases will all be
advanced reviews based on -- on the discussion
we just had. It's almost up to the individual
case, and we don't know what they may be.

In other words, if I see a dose reconstruction
case in which all of the dosimetry for the
entire employment period is there, that there
was comprehensive biocassay data, and that
everything was done well, you could almost say
why would there be a need for anything other
than be sure that all the numbers jive and all
the things are correct.

Now on the other hand, if I open up a file and
I realize that there are years of employment
for which there are no data, and the person in
the CATI report states that he was certainly

monitored both by -- by -- for external as well

review we categorically now raise a question,
is this dose reconstruction complete. 2aAnd if -
- if there are potential for missing data, then
I should pursue it. But I can't tell that in
advance. In other words, I can't loock at a
folder bhefore I look at it and say this will be

an advanced review, because it may very well
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turn out to be a very complete and thorough
dose reconstruction which obviates the need for
an advanced review. 8o it's really -- I won't
know until I look at the data before I come to
the conclusion that maybe a more thorough
investigation is warranted here.

DR. MELIUS: Yeah, but it seems to me that
that's arguing for the method by which we
select cases for advanced review, or that we
have -- develop criteria that would -- asg one
does a review that would triage cases into an
advanced versus a basic review. But part of
the idea of the audit is for us to, you know,
learn how to do that and -- and to make sure
that, yeah, there's going to be some -- may be
some wasted effort. May turn out that things

shouldn't -- shouldn't be pursued, but I think

“we want to confirm that and confirm at the same

time that, you know, NIOSH or whoever made the
decisions on that made the right decisions. 8o
I guess I'm -- again, as I say, I'm very
reluctant to...

DR. MAURO: Could I make a suggestion? As a
practical matter, maybe the way to work this

problem is let's envision Hans completes these
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first round of reviews and are at that stage

where we're having our one-to-one interactions

3 where we -- the two or three-person teams are

4 talking toc Hans and Kathy and the team about

3 that case. Okay? And during that conversation

6 Hans says by the way, we've got one of these

7 where there's a problem, where I think we --

8 there -- it looks like there might be some data

9 out there, that should be out there, based on

10 the CATI infor-- whatever the information is --

il where I think we've got to go the extra yard

12 and this is one of our findings. Perhaps at

i3 that point -- and since we don't know what --

14 which ones that's going to be and how important

15 -- and it might turn out not to be important.

16 I mean I'm not sure. But I'm saying that one

17 way to get to the problem on a real time basis
— A8~~~ ig"to engage that issue at the time of the

19 dialogue with you folks at that in-between

20 point before we deliver our product as being a

21 practical way to get through this process.

22 DR. MBLIUS: Again, if I may speak, I think

23 that is -- may be workable, but I think we'd

24 have to have some sort of a -- I don't if we

I
W

call it a guote or what, that only certain
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numbers would be pursued because I think that
process could get out of -- get out of hand.

And I think there's issues of sort of who's

4 involved in making those decisions and so

5 forth. I think we would need some criteria for

6 doing that.

7 PR. ZIEMER: Okay. Wanda and then Robert.

8 MS. MUNN: One gets the feeling that we do have

9 a criterion which we have perhaps not

10 raddréssed. it seems to me that the process

11 that John and Hans are suggesting is ideal,

12 with one small glitch. The Board review team

13 does not at this juncture have the authority,

14 nor have we even considered, so far as I know,

) authorizing the contractor to go seek the

16 additional information that might be called for

17 under our current concept of an extended -- an
" 18—~ "~ advanced review. This would appear to be a

19 | fairly crucial point for us to address, and I'd 7

20 like to see us think about that and perhaps

21 come to some conclusion about that. There's

» not any question in my mind that that would be

23 a very efficient way to identify an advanced

24 review. But without the full Board's

25 acknowledgement that it's approved --
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authorized for the contractor to go outside the
communication lines between themselves and

NIOSH, I'd hesitate to agree to that.

4 DR. ZIEMERR: And as a practical matter, if you
5 -- take worst case, you have all six teams

6 deciding that all three of their cases should

7 have an advanced review and suddenly you have

B 20 advanced reviews. So we would have to have
9 a well-defined procedure for making the

10 dééisiéﬁ. B o 7

1l Robert.

12 MR. PRESLEY: Point well taken. I -- T won't
13 keep on on it. This is something that the full
4 Board needs to take up and not just a three-

15 person committee.

16 DR. ZIEMER: Further discussion on that point,
17 or shall we proceed? I think we're aware of
I8 —-— - —the issue. We may need to address it in some

19 way by specifying either numbers of cases that
20 -- or the parameters under which such a case

21 would move into that category.

2» MR. GRIPFON: I -- I also think maybe we -- you
23 know, from an operational standpoint -- we've
24 al-- we've already run into some of these

25 questions where -- and I -- I don't want -- you
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know, we don't want to have duplication of
effort, certainly. So if you're doing an
advanced review, we've run into the case of
savannah River where we have findings, but I
don't think -- and I would slightly disagree
with Hans 'cause I don't think we -- in those
first 20 cases we didn't take those Savannah
River --

DR. MAURO: Although I --

hR.WéhIFFON:_ -—Vto &ée Jim Neton's term, to
ground.

DR. MAURO: To ground, sure.

MR. GRIFFON: Right?

DR. MAURO: That's true.

MR. GRIFPFON: We didn't, we deferred it to the
(unintelligible) --

DR. MAURO: Defer toc the site prof-- exactly

— ——-right-— That's-where -we -are-. —

MR. GRIFFON: 1In an advanced review I would
argue that you would, but -- but also, for an
operational standpoint, say we got to be
reasonable about this, and if we -- if we have
a situation where we've got a site profile
coming for that site, let's not -- let's not

have a dose reconstructor out there doing that
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1 for one case. You can put in that -- in your

[}V ]

report that we have this finding. We want to -

3 - we want to do a drill-down on it back to

4 source data, but we have a site profile pending

5 --

6 DR. MAURO: Uh-huh.

7 MR. GRIFFON: -- and we're going to do it under

8 that process. And I think that -- I think we

9 can work from that. That's my opinion, anyway.

10 But I don't want to lose the smaller sites or

11 the -- or the CATI information. Especially the

12 CATI stuff I think is important when we get

13 into the best-estimate cases. I know we've had

14 mostly overestimates and underestimates so far,

15 1 but. ..

16 DR. BEHLING: Let me give you a good example as

17 to where I would consider an advanced case as
—_— e }— —— ——being different from a basic. - For instance,-in

19 the past if I had seen, for instance, a CATI

20 report that says I was involved in radiological

21 incidents, or even documentation to that

22 effect, in the DOE records. But rather than

23 pursue the issue of what might that dose have

24 been that would have been assigned to an

23 unmonitored radiological incident, the dose
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reconstructor chose to say well, he's covered
by the 28 radionuclide hypothetical case and

that takes care of it. Under the advanced

4 review we might want to look at the

5 radiological incident and say are you sure, and
6 then try to do a scoping calculation that says
7 we agree or we don't agree.

8 In the past we've said well, there's an issue
9 here. The radiological incidence was not --
10 not necessarily documented and followed through
1 in terms of dose calculation, but that's your
12 problem, NIOSH. We --

13 MR. GRIFFON: (Off microphone) And that was

14 {unintelligible).

15 DR. BEELING: -- may now -- yeah, and we would
16 stop. At this point I may choose to say let's
17 go and take a look at the radiological

12 incident, whether it's an intake or skin

i9 contamination or something else, and then look
20 at the potential doses that might result from
21 such an incident and compare that to the 28

22 radionuclide hypothetical and come to a

23 conclusion as to whether or not that judgment
24 call was correct.

25 DR. ZIEMER: Let me ask this question -- I'll
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i ask it of the Board. 1Is it conceivable that we

(B

could take the first round review on a set of

3 20 cases -- and the contractor might even

4 identify one or two or three that had these

5 characteristics -- and then we could make

6 ‘ instructions during the early rounds to say

7 please go back and drill down on this case or

8 these two cases or something like that, and --

9 DR. MAURO: Yeah. I think we could do it for
10 . the whole set. In other words, we're -- we're
1 ab-- I mean -- and in -- and in theory, a

12 letter report could go out that will -- when we
13 deliver our next set -- our last set of 20

14 case-- 22 cases, we will have now the luxury to
15 say okay, we've been through 60 cases and in

16 light of the conversation we're having right

17 now, out of those cases, how many occasions did

g i we have where-drilling down-would-probably have .|

19 been a -- is a desirable -- to get closure, and
20 we could make a little table.

21 DR. ZIBEMER: Yeah. Well, I'm sort of raising
L&/ this to the Board as a methodology -- you know,
23 clearly the sentiment is we don't want to lose
24 the -- this option of -- of doing what we

25 called the advanced dose reconstruction, and
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the question is how to identify such cases and
when to do it.

Wanda.

MS. MUNN: John, do you have any feel, right
off the top of your head -- or Hans -- about --
I'm unaware -- none of the cases that I loocked
at were left in such a state that I felt they
should -- personally -- be pursued further. Do
DR. BEHLING: Yeah, let me --

MS. MUNN: -- what's your gut-level feeling?
DR. BEHLING: Yeah, let me give you an example,
and I don't know it's the last -- the third set
or the second set where I had a case where a
person had a .. And he, in
his CATI interview, identified an incident
where he was injured and several years later he

developed,--on-the exaet- location,

And he is now basically implying that the event

that took place where

., and yet there was no recocrd. And of
course I've -- my first question is -- this
happened probably

and even though it was never considered
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a radiological incident ‘'cause there was no
record of it, but there should have been a
report from the first aid station on-site that
treated this person, as we now know peocople do
in fact -- when they get injured on the job, it
is -- there is a record for it. 2nd I was --
and I wrote it up in the report. I said now
this is an unresclved issue. But at this
point, if this was an advanced review, I would
go back and say let's go take a look at the
record. Obviously the infirmary would prcbably
have a report on this individual. He clainms
that there were coworkers who were witness to
this. But again, there was no confirmation to
that effect. And if it turns out that this
incident really did take place, one would have

to look at this a little more carefully and say

-is—this the-exact location that you potentially -

may have been exposed to internally, especially
if it was an introduction of radionuclides into
that area, and it may have been the etiological
factor for your -- or is this
something that you just kind of back-fitted in
order to strengthen your claim. T mean I'm not

going to pass judgment here,
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DR, ZIEMER: Yeah, well, generically how
frequently do we -- are we seeing like one per

20 or ten --

4 DR. BEHLING: Yeah, there‘ve been a few where I
5 have raised a question --

6 DR. ZIEMER: So it's not a large number and we
7 could --

8 DR. BEHLING: No, it's not a large number.

9 MR. GRIFPON: I have -- I mean I think there's
10 -- there's -- I don't know, I mean I don't hawve
11 a number, but I'd say seven or eight out of 20,
12 of the first 20, because we deferred them to

13 site profile.

14 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah.

15 MR. GRIFFON: S0 -- so right there, you know --
16 you know, you're saying we stopped with

17 Savannah River because we said high five -- you
B & S — Know, it's likely to be very claimant- -
19 favorable, the ~-- you know, these are

20 overestimate techniques, but we had questions
21 about the wvalidity of the database, et cetera.
22 But we deferred it. We didn't go any further.
23 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

24 MR. GRIFFON: So are there drill-- sure,

there's CATI ones, too. I mean --
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DR. WADEB: I would like --

MR. GRIFFON: So I think there are examples,
but I -- I also want to make one point is I
think we need to have this discussion, '‘cause
this is a scope discussion, and I don't think
it belongs in the closed --

DR. WADE: 1 agree with that, so I wanted to
say that. I think -- but I also want to leave
this closed session with the ability to extend
the contract, so I would ask the Becard to -- to
consider how it would want to proceed. But I
think we're -- we've gotten far down into the
technical issues and that needs to happen in an
open session.

DR. ZIEMER: But in terms of the closed

session, though, the issue I think would arise,

does it impact on the -- on the asgignment of

time and effort, because if it does -- you
know, we don't necessarily have to define here
that scope, but if we are going to keep this as
an option, does it impact on the time and
effort issue.

DR. MAURO: The answer would be, if I were
redoing this now, in light of this

conversation, I would probably say let's assume
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T T speculative.

out of the €0 there will be ten, just --

talked to Hans a little bit -- where we're
going to have to do a little follow-up that
might --

DR. ZIEMER:
time that we'll allow up to some number,
whether it's five or ten, whatever.

DR. MAURO: Right, and that would be the easy

part. The harder part was well, okay,

we're going to have to go te bring it to

ground.
DR. ZIEMER: Right.
DR. MADRO: That's the big unknown. And so I

probably could put some nominal amount of
resources in there that would increase the
budget a little bit

-- really not -- perhaps

not that much, but it would be wvery

63

but T

Or we could even specify at scope

how far

DR. WADR: How does the Board wish to proceed
on this issue?

to ask John

Is

Is there a sense -- do you want
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there a sense at this point?

MS. MUNN: My --
DR. ZIEMER: I have a suggestion in that
regard, since even the number 70 is somewhat

speculative, and we can always change the task

later on, that we simply make it known that we

do want to retain this option; and if we

identify cases where we believe that should
happen, we should do it within this -- within

the scope. There's budget money here to go

guite a ways into the year. If we have to

modify it later, we can.

DR. MAURO: I'd like to add one point. We're

refer--

DR. ZIEMER: I guess we can.

DR. MADRO: We're referring to what we have

been doing as a basic. It's not. It's -- I

would say it's more advanced than it's basic.
We're doing audits --

DR. ZIEMER: Yes.

DR. MAURO: -- on each and every line item.
That was --

DR. ZIEMER: Right.

DR. MAURO: So we -- we really have been doing

this in-between thing.
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DR. ZIEMER: Right, understood.

DR. MAURO: We're real cl-- in fact, I would
say we're closer to an advanced than we are to
a basic.

DR. ZIEMER: Right.

DR. WADE: Let's hear from --

DR. MAURO: That's what we've actually been
doing.

DR. WADE: We really have toc keep to task.

Jim?

DR. MELIUS: Yeah, and that's my concern here
is we -- we are being asked to approve
something that's a significant change in scope.
And I mean I don't think we should do that
without a more complete discussion, and I worry
~-- I mean worry that we're doing it at -- under

the pressure of trying to get a cost proposal

" approved, but for a scope that we've never

discussed in open session, that we've never
really sort of evaluated and thought about what
our options are. And I'm not sure what we're
approving, and I real-- I don't think that's
fair to the -- the process and so forth. And
for this to come up at -- I mean I noticed it

when I read the proposal, but we all got the
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proposal sometime --

DR. ZIBEMER: Well, let me ask --

DR. MELIUS: -- last week.
DR. ZIEMER: -- David Staudt if he can guide us
on what -- what we need for decision today on

the current document relative to this issue.
David, are you -~

MR. STAUDT: Well, I think -- you know, this
all goes to time, as far as when the next Board
will get together and we just want to make sure
that, you know, there's no -- there's no lag
here. 5o I mean we certainly -- if you want to
just have just the minimum amount of work to
continue and if there needs to be further
discussion, we can add that work later on. I
don't have a problem with that. So if you want

to minimize or limit to what -- what is

authorized to move forward for a while on this
task, I'm fine with that.

DR. MELIUS: Then I -- then I would suggest
that we then just authorize whatever it is, the
20 or the 22 --

UNIDENTIFIED: (Off microphone) Basic.

DR. MELIUS: -- and that we also then schedule

time and so forth tco discuss the scoping issue
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and how we want to proceed with these reviews,
and that should include an evaluation of what's

gone on to date in this context.

4 DR. WADR: That's what we'll do then.
5 MR. GRIFFON: And I would -- I would argue
6 maybe we should authorize the 20 or 22, but
7 instead of going (unintelligible) basic or --
8 or what you're saying is in between, let's do
9 ten advanced, and then we can evaluate to see
10 if there's actually any différence or not.
11 Maybe -- maybe John's on the mark saying we
12 don't need more of these, but I think maybe we
3 should do ten on the advanced reviews as a
14 trial out of those 20, you know --
15 DR. ZIEMER: Ten out of the -- well, they're
16 bidding on what, 607?
17 DR. WADE: Sixty, but --

———— ~ &~ — " DR.TZIEMER: They're bidding on 60.
19 DR. WADE: We have selected the first 20. We
20 could proceed with the first 20 as basic. We
21 could proceed with the first 20 as Mark is
22 suggesting, ten of each. It's how would the
23 Board like to proceed.
24 DR. ZIEMER: There's a suggestion, though, I
25 think -- conceivably you may have none in that
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20 that lend themselves to being what vyou would
call having a need for an advanced review.

DR. MAURO: The -- in fact, I think it's the --
if you recail, the first set of 60 -- let's --
let's put the blind on the shelf for right now,
the parking lot. The first set of 60 -- first
-- first set of 20, second set of 20, they were
basic¢, and in theory the last ones, the ones
we're working on right now -- Hans is doing
right now -- are in theory advanced. The
concept of setting aside and saying okay, we're
going to make this last set advanced, it
inherently is a flawed idea, the reason being
what becomes advanced emerges during the
review. It's the case itself that dictates
whether we have something --

DR. ZIEMER: Whether you need to --

777 DR. MAUDRO: -- that it requires advanced

treatment.

DR. ZIEMER: Right, that's...

DR. MELIUS: I beg to differ. I think you have
made a unilateral determination to change the
scope of the work, and I find that very
disturbing. I find it very disturbing that we

first hear about this in a closed session, and
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-- I just...

DR. WADE: Okay. Okay, so we need to move on
to the next tab. I would propose that we -- we
have two options. We suspend work on dose
reconstruction reviews, or we task them to do
20 basic reviews to start the year, with a more
detailed discussion and proposals at our next
meeting.

DR. ZIEMER: Bob?

MR. PRESLEY: I would like to see us do our 20

basic reviews and see how much we spend on that

before we start asking them to do more. Let's
see -- let's see what it costs to do the basic.
DR. ZIEMER: Now let -- let me clarify here.

When we talk basic, we're asking the contractor
to back away from the present methodology which
they're calling -- what, intermediate or --

DR. ZIEMER: Comprehensive?

MR. GRIFFON: I mean I would still argue for
the ten and ten, proceed -- T gtill -- T want
to move with dose reconstruction, certainly. I
don’'t want to stall on that. I would say stick
with our current scope, and if they find that

that's -- you know, we'll -- we'll see what
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they come out with on the next 20. If they
come back to us and say we tried to do an
advanced -- I don't accept that, but I think
it's a scope discussion and I don't accept that
advanced cases dictate when an advanced is
needed. I mean if -- I -- I think that's a
scope discussion, though.

DR. WADE: Jim?

DR. MELIUS: Well, we are next meeting the
middle of October. My understanding was that
this was not going to be renewed until after
the first of October anyway, this particular
task -- if I heard Dave correctly. So I mean

we're talking about two weeks, so are we better

off scheduling a closed session -- an open
session and then a closed session to deal -- I
mean I don't know what procedures -- or do a

conference call or something to talk about the
scope, a Board meeting by conference call to
discuss this before the --

MR. STAUGDT: This is Dave. I think we're
actually good on this task until the end of
October, so I'm not so sure that we have to
immediately push out on this. If you -- you

know, if you want to take some time to think
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about this again, as I said,

Or the other option is to simply, at the
beginning of October,
some money and then we can put in ranges,

I hate to hard-line ten and

you want to --

you know. I prefer to have the "up to" or

-- some ranges sSoO there's some flexibility

based on the cases that are coming in. So

not sure now, but I (unintelligible)

put the contractor in a bind.

DR. WADE: Okay. So what we can do then,

hear you say, David,

71

it's up to you.

give them -- give them

if

ten,

some

I'm

put the --

I

is we can wait until the

October meeting when we would have proposals

from SC&A of the type we would ask for, and

then go into closed session and make a
decision,

meeting.

and then pick up the work after that

They would contin-- have the ability

they have in front of them in terms of the
first 60.

MR. STAUDT: Right, and I
could maybe talk about the funding.
know if they're going to,
(unintelligible). They (unintelligible)

encugh money right now.

T €0 COREinue to wWork to closure on the work that

-- and I guess John
I don't

you know, burn more
have

Maybe John can talk
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about that.

DR. MAURO: I didn't underst-- I didn't hearxr
the guestion, I'm sSorry.

DR. WADE: He wants to know if you have enocugh
money in hand to complete the first 60.

DR, MAURO: Yes.

DR. WADE: You do. Okay, yves. And so that's -
- that's the approach we'll take at this point.
Let's move on to the next topic.

DR. ZIBEMER: Okay.

DR. MAURO: We'll move on to task five, which
is the SEC-related TORP. That's the one -- if
everyone -- again, if you could open up to page
eight of that proposal, Exhibit 3, what we’'ve
been asked to do is to estimate what it would
cost tc do a total of six -- we're calling it

either SEC petition -- the fundamental heart of

it -- there are several tas-- there are several
tasks.

Sub-task one is to review procedures. That ig,
there are currently a set of NIOSH/ORAU
procedures that are being used to review SEC
petitions. We've been asked to perform a
review of those procedures, deliver it within

one month of the date of authorization, and




da W 49

n

L - R S N«

16
17

—— e —— 178‘_ — o — i —

19
20

73

we've set aside 300 work hours to de that --
pretty straightforward.

The second thing we've been asked to do, which
is a little bit more -- I guess -- we -- we --
to write our own procedures. And the way the
statement of work was written is we're really
writing the procedures that SC&A proposes to
the Board that we use to review either SEC
petitions or NIOSH's review of the SEC
petitions. So they're sort of two different
kinds of things, as I understand it and as T
interpreted the TORP. That is, we will have --
SC&A, on behalf of the Board, will be putting
in place a set of procedures that we recommend
be used to either review an SEC -- SEC petition
ourselves or to review the report that NIOCSH

prepares with respect to that petition. So my

‘Tutiderstand-- and -- now -- so that would be

sub-task two. Okay? And we set aside -- what
did I say here -- 240 work hours to prepare
that procedure.

Now the next step is where we will actually --
sub-task three where we actually do the review
of these petitions and/or reports. And what --

what I basically said is the cost to do one of
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these reviews is going to differ substantially
if, one, there is in place already a TBD. And
not only a TBD, a TBD where SC&A has performed
a review of the TBb. If -- if that turns out
to be our direction, please do a review of an
SEC petition or report dealing with -- let's
say it turns out Hanford. Well, we have a
Hanford TBD, we reviewed Hanford; we're in
great shape, 500 work hours. Okay?

If it turns out, though, that you ask us to do
a review of a petition where there is a TBD but
SC&A has not performed a review of the TRD,
1,000 work hours -- which is very much like the
review of a TBD.

Finally, if you ask us to perform a review of a
petition where there is -- where there is no

TBD and where there -- well, there is no TED,

we éstimate we would reguire 1,500 work hours.
So that's how we came at this problem. 1In
other words, we're coming -- in other words,
we're going to be coming at it naked. We're
going to have to look at all the records
without the benefit of there being a TBD.

We were asked to price out a TORP whereby there

were five SEC petition reviews that have a TBD,
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5,000 work hours, and -- about 5,000 work
hours. I'm using -- there's actually a range
I've used here. And one where we're coming at

it what I call naked, where there is nc TBD,
and that‘*s the 1,500 -- approximately 1,500
work hours.

So this is how we came to our cost and -- with
that general starting point. Now what happened
was, during negotiations -- there was a certain
degree of negotiations on the cost and so forth
-~ we -- we reworked our numbers and it came

down a bit. That's why the number's a little

lower. So we are -- in fact, I don't know if
you're -- we went through a process where we
submitted to David Staudt a -- and Lew, and T

believe perhaps all the Board members, I'm not

sure if you received the original proposal, but

fhen there was a negotiation process where we
discussed -- where some of the scope was cut
back in terms of the number of -- of TBDs. I
think it went down from -- there was a previous
number that came down to six. But in any
event, there was a process and -- but as a
general rule of thumb, for the purpose of --

when we cost this, we went with the 500, 1,000,
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1,500 concept for SEC petition support, the
actual reviews.

Then fin-- the next step is, we assumed that
there will have to be some meetings, working
board meetings. Now -- not -- not‘Board
meetings. Any full Board meeting that we have,
such as this one, is part of task four -- I'm
sorry, task six, which we'll talk about in a
minute. But we believe_thgt there's going to
be a need for several -- and I think we assumed
three -- meetings where there's going to be
working group meetings, either in Cincinnati or
in McLean, so we put in a budget for that, so -
- so actuélly that's what sub-task four is.
There's some level of effort required to
support working group meetings.

And then finally, in accordance with the TORP,

we realized that there are going to be
circumstances where there will be SEC-related
issues where you're not going to want usg to
review the petition in its entirety, or a NIOSH
report in its entirety, but there may be a very
narrow issue -- perhaps a particular time frame
or a particular technical issue -- that you'd

like us to take a look at, like a special
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project. 8So what we did is we set aside some
resources for special investigations where -- a
very focused direction we receive from you
folks, and we set aside 800 work hours so that
if in fact you want to call upon us to look at
a very focused issue within a broader scope, we
have gsome resources to do it.

So that's how we came teo ocur scope and our
budget to support this task.

DR. ZIEMER: Okay, questions. Jim Melius.

DR. MBLIUS: I -- just a comment. I think -- I
think -- I understand how difficult it was to
come up with these numbers, given our history
of dealing with SECs, evaluations and what
we've been sort of asking you to do under this
site profile thing at the same time. And I

guess I'm basically satisfied with your

estimates. T guess one -- the only one I have
some questions on was the 1,500 for the -- the
naked review, only -- only in that I think

that's going to involve very small sites and I
don't think they're going tc be that
complicated and so forth -- but who knows? You
know, there's some site profiles that haven’t

been completed yet, involve fairly large sites
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and fairly complicated sites, and so it may
take that amount of time and so forth.

PR. ZIEMER: Of course in reality you're just

4 going to bill whatever it does take.

5 DR. MELIUS: Yeah, exactly. Exactly, yeah,

6 that's what I'm saying. It's not -- and we may
7 need the room -- those 1,500 hours or those

8 extra -- beyond that is going to be useful for
9 other --

10 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

11 DR. MELIUS: -- cases, I...

12 DR. ZIEMER: John or Board members, help me

13 remember. On task two -- not task two, but

i4 item two of this task, on the so-called Board
15 procedures, were we thinking originally that
16 these procedures are the SC&A procedures that
17 they would use, or -- I thought we had
- —originally tiIKked about having help with our
19 own procedures.

20 DR. WADE: I think so.

21 DR. MELIUS: They were both,

22 DR. ZIEMER: Or both.

23 DR. WADE: And they're so intermingled --

24 DR. ZIEMER: And John, was that your

25 understanding? I thought I heard you focusing
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mainly on your own procedures, but for example,

the Board may want to put in place some

3 procedures that spell out what -- for example,
4 what is -- what should be the status of a site
5 profile and its review before we consider a
6 petition. Or you know, what -- what degree of
7 open information would we allow before we move
8 forward and -- and so on. There are a lot of -
9 - I think we have intgrnal procedures that we
10 may have to deal with, and was that part of --
H you weren't thinking about us.
12 DR. MAURO: No. I was -- I was thinking that -
i3 - what is it that as -- as -- I guessz as your
14 contractor, what procedures --
15 DR. ZIEMER: What would you do.
16 DR. MAURO: -- would we use --
17 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah.

T~ i8 "~ 'DR. MAURD: -- to answer the -- to determine
19 | the degree to which the petition --
20 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah.
21 DR. MAURO: -- in fact satisfies 42 CFR Part
22 83.
23 DR. ZIEMER: Right.
23 DR. MAURO: That's -- and what procedures would

we follow.
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I DR. ZIEBMBR: And I think --

9

DR. MAURO: You just described something --

3 DR. ZIEMER: -- when we wrote this original

4 scope thing, we were thinking about the extent

5 to which yvou could help us --

6 DR. MAURO: Yeah.

7 DR. ZIEMER: -- develop our own procedures. T

8 mean --

9 DR. MAURO: I missed the boat. Okay? I did

10 ; not write that -- that's not the proposal I

1) S wrote.

12 DR. ZIEMER: Well, I'm asking. That seemed to

13 me that we had talked about that and can --

14 DR. MELIUS: Yeah, but to me it's the same --

15 : they're so closely --

16 ; DR. ZIEMER: We're intertwined.

17 DR. MELIUS: -- interconnected, it doesnit --
—— ===~ ———-—DR. ZIEMERY ~WE'Te intertwined, because when we

19 talk about us reviewing -- say a site profile -

20 - relative to an SEC petition, we're asking vyou

21 to do it. But we may have to have some

22 | internal rules that are Board rules.

23 o DR. MELIUS: Or we may only ask SC&A to focus

24 on a particular aspect of what we have to

25 evaluate as a Board.
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1 DR. WADE: I think it is the same.

1

DR. MELIUS: Yeah, so -- I -- I actually raised

this question when I first saw this proposal

L")

4 and I was confused, also. I --

5 DR. ZIEMER: I want to make sure that the

6 contractor understands that -- that it -- and

7 maybe they are sort of the same, but we -- we

8 have to have some framework under which we

9 proceed with you.

10 _ DR. MAURO: Yeah.

11 DR. MELIUS: Yeah.

12 DR. MAURO: I suspect there is probably a delta

13 between the procedures that we were thinking in

14 terms of writing on your behalf to review the

15 technical merits of an application and -- et

16 cetera, and the issues. And -- but there may

17 be higher level questions that you folks have
— e~ —to come to grips With thHat -

19 DR. ZIEMER: Oh, yes, ves.

20 DR. MAURO: -- that we -- we -- and that you

21 will need some type of framework within which

22 to make those decisions.

23 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

24 DR. MAURO: I have tc say, when we sat down and

25 wrote this we were not thinking within that
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higher level framework.

DR. WADE: I think the Board will need to
advise you -- I think this will be something
we'll work together on. I was comfortable that
your proposal was responsible to the scope.

DR. MAURO: Yeah, we actually wrote a -- unlike
the others, which are really letter proposals,
this was pretty detailed. We actually have a
checklist, we have -- you know, we did a lot
here, so you have a pretty good idea what we
had in our minds. If that's what -- not
adequate --

DR. WADE: 1I was comfortable with that, given
the fact that it will happen as a partnership
between you and the Board.

Okay, what about the next one?

DR. MAURO: We're almost done. This should ke

e —————very—quickr— The tast one is our Hew Lask six,

which is our project management task. As you
recall previously, all of what I call over-
arching support, program management activities,
was billed against task four -- budgeted and
billed against task four. Created a cumbersome
situation because it was difficult to

distinguish between how much money we're
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spending on doing actual case review and how
much money we're spending attending Beoard
meetings, because part -- what we were doing is
whenever we attended a Board meeting, we fill
out a time sheet. These hours -- my hours
right now, when I fill out my time sheet, is
going to go against task four. fThat's not a
good situation to be in.

So what I did is I said ngy,rbeginning October
lst, at your reguest -- you sent us a TORP --
we will have a separate program management task
order, which basically will cover a number of
areas, and you can see the columns. The
columns are monthly progress reports --
basicaliy I spend one day a month putting
together the progress reports that you folks

see. And then we have the Board meetings, I

may -- I assumed that we were going to have a
Board meeting every two months. They will
probably (unintelligible) four people,
sometimes five. There's the work hours to
support the Board meetings.

Records management, Kathy Behling and Nicole
Briggs* on our project team have been doing a

lot to help everyone else get the records that
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4 role.

5 House and Senate meetings. As you know, we get

6 a phone call every so often from a

7 Representative or from the Senate or the House,

8 and -- either myself, Arjun or Joe will -- or

9 the three of us go over and meet with thege

10 folks and spend two or three hours with them,

5] S0 1 put -- I put in place 72 work hours for

12 next year to continue to do that kind of thing.

13 It's a modest budget.

14 QA -- the last three items I call QA, conflict

15 of interest and Privacy Act. We have in house

16 our procedures and requirements to make sure

17 everyone that works on this project, every
-_— s contractor that WOTKS on this project, fulfills

19 our QA requirements, our conflict of interest

20 requirements and our Privacy Act requirements.

21 This requires time on the part primarily of

2 Steve Ostrow, who is our manager of these

23 issues. He's -- in fact, he's the one who's

24 putting together right now our SC&A database

84

they need from wherever they have to get them
and has been -- so I put in some medest number

of work hours so they could continue in that

with all the bio sketches on it. He's the one
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who wrote the procedures that -- all the
conflict of interest, quality assurance
procedures that you folks have before you in
your files, so I -- I allocated some work hours
for him to continue in that mode and continue
that kind of support.

So the bot-- and that's how we came toc the
scope of work that -- and it's 1,584 work
hours, program management oversight.

DR. WADE: Thank vyou, John.

DR. ZIEMER: Okay. Jim, then Wanda.

DR. MELIUS: ©No, actually do Wanda first. TI'm

DR. ZIEMER: Wanda.
DR. MELIUS: -- I'm going to stand prepared to
disagree with her.

DR. ZIEMER: Wanda?

‘MSTMUNNT ~HE Knew as soon as it went up.

DR. MELIUS: I saw when it went up.

MS. MUNN: Yeah. Although I have -- the amount
of funding seems toc be appropriate, there is an
issue which the Board needs to address outside
of this purview with respect to the interaction
with folks on the Hill, and others, not just

that one, that I wanted to make doubly certain
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everyone was aware --

2 DR. WADE: On the agenda for tomorrow.

3 MS. MUNN: -- that this was on our agenda for -
4 -

5 DR. ZIEMER: Right.

6 MS. MUNNWN: -- tomorrow.

7 DR. ZIEMER: We do have that for tomorrow's

8 agenda, and I think Board members have received
9 from you, Wanda, a propcsed policy --

10 MS. MUNN: fes, and i haverhard c¢opies for --
11 DR. ZIEMER: -- not a motion.

12 MS. MUNN: -- those who want it, just --

13 DR. ZIEMER: There is -- of course, as --

14 MS. MUNN: -- ijust there,

15 DR. ZIEMER: -- as John pointed out, in this
16 budget they have actually designated 72 hours
17 plus some travel --
18— —-—=--—-— DR+~ MAURO: And I"d be {(unintelligible) —-

i9 DR. ZIEMBR: -- expenses --

20 DR, MAURO: -- it's wvery modest, ‘'cause --

21 DR. ZIEMER: -- a couple of thousand --

22 DR. MADRO: -- it's -- it's basically --

23 DR. ZIEMER: -- dollars for travel.

24 DR. MAURO: ~-- me getting on a train to go to
25 D.C.
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} DR. ZIEMER: Right. B2And you know in the past
s I've -- I've been concerned that in a sense
3 it's costing us money to have ocur contractor go
4 up to the Hill pericdically. In essence, if
5 this is in the budget and it's a budget that
6 the Hill is providing, then they are providing
7 the resources to do that, so I think that's
8 appropriate 'cause -~- ‘cause we are going to,
9 in any event, keep the Hill apprised. They --
10 it is a kind of prercgative we-have to honor,
11 : and this does provide some resources to do
12 that.
i3 The issue of us accompanying and so on, we'll
14 ~ handle in the open session. Jim?
15 DR. MELIUS: And I would just add that
16 approving this task or the budget for this
17 task, you know, is -- it will be -- they'll

—————— 48—~~~ biltlagainst It and it dependson the number of F——

i9 meetings and so forth and however it‘s decided
20 to proceed, so I don't think what we decide
21 later should affect what we're doing here now.
» DR. ZIEMER: All right. Any other gquestions on
B this one?
24 (No responses)
23 Ckay. Thank you.
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4 four, five and six. Task two will cease to
5 exist or shows up as being budgeted as zero.
6 Task three will remain to be defined, I guess,
7 what did we --
8 DR. WADE: Or task four.
9 DR. ZIEMER: Is it four? Oh, individual dose
10 reconstructions.
11 DR. WADE: Task four has been tabled,
12 basically.
13 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah, task three is really the
14 procedures review. So what -- what action is
15 needed now, Lew or -- or David? Do we need to
16 -- does the Board need to formally approve
17 these other tasks and the costs?

———— g - — ————— MR+ STAUDT: Yes, I —— yes—I-—IF -—that's— |
19 what I would recommend.
20 DR. ZIEMER: Okay.
21 MR. STAUDT: And that's (unintelligible) T
32 would like done. If you would like, I can -- I
23 can put the new tasks -- two -- task order five
24 and six in place within the next week.
25 Otherwise it would have to wait till Octcber.
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DR. MAURO: That's it.
DR. ZIEMER: Or on any of the tasks now? So

what we have are basically task one, three,
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DR. ZIEMER: Okay, let me ask for a motion to
approve tasks one, three, five and six with the
costs as provided by the contractor.

MR. ESPINOSA: So moved.

DR. ZIEMER: Moved by Espinosa. Seconded --
MR. OWENS: Second.

DR. ZIEMER: -- by Owens.

MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: (Off microphone)
(Unintelligible) motion (unintelligible).

DR. ZIﬁKER: No.

DR. WADE: Wait a minute, I'm about to get
yelled at here.

DR. ZIEMER: We don't -- okay. Counsel has --
we have a procedural issue here.

MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: Since we're in closed
session that was closed for cost issues --

DR. ZIEMER: Oh, we get -- the motion --

‘MS.  HOMOKI-TITUS: --"your motion should only

be on cost. You --

DR. ZIEMER: -- can take place --

MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: -- can't do a motion on
scope until you've --

DR. ZIEMEBR: Gotcha.

MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: -- had that discussion

publicly.
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i DR. WADE: Right, so this is a motion on cost.

"o

DR. ZIEMER: So Liz, the correct motion would

3 be to approve the costs, as -- as -- do we need
4 a motion at all in closed session?
5 MS. HOMOKRI-TITUS: You need a motion
6 (unintelligible} --
7 DR. WADE: Could I --
g8 DR. ZIEMER: Can the motion --
9 DR. WADE: -- counsel in public -- I mean we've
10 cidsed the meeting to finalize contractor cost
1 and work scope issues, so to me, we're defining
12 | work scope issues and cost, as they relate.
13 | MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: Right, as they relate, but I
14 think you all have gone -- had a scope
15 discussion and you're looking to expand scope -
16 | -
17 : DR. WADE: No --

——} § e - ——— DR MBLIUST —No7 we're nots e e i e
19 DR. ZIEMER: No.
20 DR. WADB: -- no, we're not, we're --
21 MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: You're not.
2 DR. WADE: -- not doing that.
23 DR. ZIEMER: Not on these -- not on these
24 items.

25 MS. HOMOKI-TITUS: Okay.
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4 as provided -- or as proposed by the

5 contractor.

6 MS. HOMOKI-~TITUS: Okay.

7 DR. WADE: Right, the two -~ scope issues will

8 he discussed in open session.

9 DR. ZIEMER: That's for task order one, three,

10 five and six, accept scope and task as bid by

13 the contractor.

12 MR. GRIFFON: Scope and cost, yeah.

i3 DR. ZIEMER: Scope and cost. Are we ockay on

14 that? Okay.

15 DR, MBLIUS: Can I offer a friendly amendment ?

16 I think we are approving this with the

¥7 understanding that we will have in place a task
— &——— — ——-—and- adegquate funding feor—individual-dose —

19 reconstruction reviews.

20 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah, I don't think that's

21 necessarily a friendly amendment. It's & --

22 it's a contextual -- the context of our action

23 is with that assumption, that there will be an

24 ongoing task for dose reconstructions.

91

DR. WADE: On these issues we're looking at the
scope Oor --

DR. ZIEMBR: We're accepting the scope and cost

DR. MBLIUS: Yeah, I would like it somehow




1 attached to cur motion because I -- I don‘t
2 think we would want to go forward with a -- I
3 think our decision might change, depending --
4 if -- and how we would allocate money or
s whatever if there were not as much -- enough
6 money or whatever, the budget changes, and we
7 want to make sure that individual dose
8 reconstruction reviews, which is our -- our
9 major charge from Congress and the legislation,
10 is included. '
il DR. ZIEMER: I guess my concern is if we put a
2 contingency on here that will prevent the
15 contracting officer from coming to closure,
14 because we won't have the next task in place
I3 till the -- till the October meeting.
16 DR. MELIUS: It's not a contingency, it's just
17 -- I think it's part of that -- it's an
e} g — - ——ynderstanding-that-it's-part-of - . _ |
i9 MR. GRIFFON: A sense.
20 DR. MBLIUS: -- a sense when we --
21 DR. ZIEMER: Right, it's a sense of the motion,
2 though. That's why I say it's contextual.
23 Everybody understands that that's the context.
24 is there any -- I don't think it regquires an
25 amendment to the motion, is what I'm saying.

92
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DR. MELIUS: Okay.

DR. ZIEMER: The record can show that it's in
that context. Wanda, vou have an additional
comment? Okay.

DR. WADE: Let's go.

MS. MUNN: (Off microphone) (Unintelligible)
discussion.

DR. ZIEMER: Okay, discussion?

MS. MUNN:

™R

DR. ZIEMER: OCkay. I don't know if that's a

motion or a comment, and ~
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MS. MUNN:
DR. ZIEMER:

MR. STAUDT:

94

As well it should be.
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{(unintelligible) --
DR. ZIEMER: Wanda, do you want to elaborate at
all on that issue?

MS. MUNN:

L =B S EE - Y T 8

14 DR. ZIEMER: Okay. Dr. Melius?

15 DR. MELIUS:

22 MR. STAUDT:
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DR. WADE: Well, let's -~ T think, David, let's

get the sense of the Board. I mean I think

ad

4 what Jim suggests is --

5 MR. STAUDT: Yes.

6 DR. WADE: I mean I'm aware of the issue. I

7 think I need to get a sense of the Board as to
8 how you would want us to proceed on this issue.
9 DR. ZIEMER: The other part of this I suppose
10 - is based in pért on previous --

1] )

12 |

i3

14

5 ‘ MS. MUNN: Yes,

16 DR. ZIEMBR: But again, that's very -- very

17 much subject to individual views. So you know,
B ——yeu're—you're—going to——vyou're-going-to be —
19 . e e e .

20

e

22 -

23

24

25
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system, I think.
Is that a fair statement, I --

MS. MONN: That's a fair statement.

4 DR. ZIEMER: Yes.

5 MR. GIBSON: 1I'd just like to state, in

6 response to that -- I would say 95 percent of

7 the claimants probably think that this system's

8 flawed because of the people doing the dose

9 reconstructions came out of this DOE work, too.

10 DR. ZIEMER: Yes, that's a fair statement. Yes

1 -- and Leon.

12 MR, OWBNS: Dr. Ziemer, I'm in full support of

13 SC&A. I think they've done an excellent job as

14 cur contractor. I do not question any of the

15 individuals that are part of the team that have

16 brought us this top quality work. T think that

17 the Board itself is made up of not just
“__._‘m~48-ﬁd~p—~Wf%w*w—Eeehﬁiea}—perswnsr*but—a%so—those*thatffﬁﬁn?““”*“_‘

19 represented labor, and if that is one of the

20 prerequisites for conflict of interest, then T

21 think there are probably several of us that --

22 around this table that would be conflicted.

23 DR. ZIEMER: Yeah. And actually it's -- it's

24 probably -- I don't know if our contractor is

25 considered fully a technical contractor, I
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guess they are. We do have -- there's a kind
of huffer in the system, because everything
that comes to us has to go through the folks
that are here. And so -- and vou know, I loock
at John Mauro, look at Arjun, at Joe
Fitzgerald, at Hans, and anything that comes to
us has to pass wmuster with them, regardless of
where it generates in their system.

Henry.

DR. ANDERSON:

DR. ZIEMER: Well, thanks, Henry.

DR. ANDERSON: —And I'‘m-Rot-a ——you—know, —-a——  ——
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DR. ZIEMER:

Okay.

Gen Roessler.

99

DR:—ROERSSLER:
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DR. ZIEMER: Jim?

DR. MELIUS:

DR. 2IEMER: I can understand why it's of

concern. Can -- John, can you tell us to

100

what

e et s

DR. MAURO: -
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DR. ZIEMER:

DR. MAURO:

DR. ZIEMER: Yeah.

101

DR MAURO:— ——-
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say geez, within the vast array of things we
look at, you may want to take a little closer

loock over here.

4 DR. ZIEMER: Qkay. Well, the issue's -- the
5 issue is out there. I think we've heard from
6 the Board. I don't know if we need to pursue
7 it any further at this time.

8

9 - -

10 We need to vote on -- we have a motion before
B us that we can I think proceed on, and the

i2 motion is to approve the cost and scope of

13 these -- one, two, three, four -- everything
I+ but task four.

ts All in favor, aye?

i6 )

i7 All opposed, no?

I8 . —

19 Any abstentions?

20 {Indicating)

21 Okay., then we will report out that --

22 DR. WADE: For the record,

23

24 —

DR. ZIEMER:
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DR. ZIEMER: Okay, thank you. I missed that, I
-- $Orry, one abstention. So we've approved
those tasks and scopes.

We will take action at -- hopefully in the
October meeting on the scope and task of the
individual dose reconstruction reviews. TIn the
meantime, it’'s our understanding that they are

able to continue over the next month or

7 Qhatever it is -- month and a half -- under the

existing funds.

DR. WADB: That's right. I would like to gee
us have some discussion in the open session as
to what we might want to see in October from
the contractor so we can make sure we have the
right material, but that needs to happen in

open session.

'm—sorry to have pushed so hard; but we needed
to -- to stick to task and we needed to get
some things done.

DR. ZIEMER: Right. And does that -- David,
are -- David Staudt, are you okay now on where
we stand?

MR. STAUDT: Absolutely.

DR. ZIEMER: Okay. Thank you very much for
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being with us today.

I think that completes our business then, does
it not? Okay, then we will recess and have a
break before we go back to open session. Thank
you all very much.

MR. STAUDT: Thank you, Dr. Ziemer.

DR. WADE: Thank you, David. 1I'll talk to you
later.

{Whereupon, the Executive Session concluded at

2:55 p.m.)
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